REGION #3 MORTON COUNTY TAPE NUMBER 11
Alice Conitz

Introduction: This is Larry Sprunk. The following is an interview
that I had with Mrs. Alice Conitz oé New Salem, North Dakota. The
interview was held Sunday, June at approximately eomewbladwesy|:30
in the afternoon. This particular interview takes up both sides

of this casette as well as side 1 of the succeeding cassette. The
interview was held at Mrs,., Conitz's home in New Salem.

Larry: Now when did your family start out in North Da....Well,

what was your maiden name first. by
1, Vdéfhfg’c
Mrs, Conitz: My name was Winewright. My name was Winewright and

my sister this winter she wrote up a story about our family ande...
Larrys Well, if it's all the same to you, Mrs. Conitz, could we
just get it kind of in your own...just tell me about it.

Mrs., Conitz: I was wondering if this would be too much to read.

Larry: Well, it doesn't sound as natural, you know.

Mrs, Conitz: Okay. Well, I'11l answer questions.,

Larry: When did your parents come?

1882
Mrs, Conitz: My father's family came from Germany in edshéeen

Siplbymtmwe and they came to Illinois. My grandfather was a miner

in Germany and they moved to Illinois and he worked in the coal

mines there too. His brother and family came with him. Julius
A

Winewright,

dhese weve )
Larry: Now shsewwes your grandfather§. And his brother.

This was your grandfather here...August?

Mrs. Conitz: His name was August also. August senior and this is

August junior back here, He was my dad, yes. Here he is again.
These are all my mother's parents. And this is our stepgrandfather.

Larry: How old was your father when your grandfather came over in

. 18827

“.when they came to America.
Mrs. Conitz: He was nine years old\V/KHEMEhey lived in Illinois

for one year and then they joined this church and came to New Salem.

‘83

That was in edshbue=tbree, And they came out on the train. There

200 n
were about swe-hwedmesd people on that train. And New Salem--there
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wasn't anything at all. My dad said when we stepped off the train
thng wasn't anything. There was Jjust a snowbank. It was the
ssseh of April and well, then the men got busy and built a big
building they called the Immigrant House. And these people, all
that could, moved into that and used that. So they had a place

besides the cars that they came in, you know. And the men were

AL tuch 2)

taken out into the country by the land man who was Mister Look.
He took them out and showed the different homesteads and my
father and his brother both went out and tdssss took homesteads.
My dad was about égn miles northwest of New Salem and the uncle

went a little iggg@;'

Larry: How old was your dad then?

T 44
9
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don't think he went out. He stayed with his mother here.
Larry: Your grandfather went out.
Mrs., Conitz: Yeah, grandfather went out. He's the old gentleman,

the 4wo old qentiemen.
And they took up that homestead and tried to get started farming.

Now they weren't farmers. They were miners. They worked in the
mine in Illinois, those two brothers. And Grandpa brought a team
of horses with him and that's about all they brought except some
lumber to build a house and then provisions so they could live out
here"cause they knew it was...there was nothing. And that was in
eazirty=bhewee, And then during one of the winters, maybe a year or
two that they had been out there, then their house burned down.

In the winter time., And I don't know where they stayed. They
must have gone to a neighbor's or something., There were neighbors
out there too in the same shape. They were all living in small
places. So then my grandfather built a sodhouse and they lived in
..myﬁgrandfather
was a miner, so to earn a little money he went down to S&ms. That's

where they had the brickyard and coal mine. So he was familiar
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with that kind of work. And he walked across, over to Sims.

That was about nine miles. And, now I can't tell you how many

winters he did that, or how many years after the fall work was
[

finished, But in e we» e walked home. As usual he walked

o,
from Sims to be with his family for Christmas Eve and for Christmas

Ard he g.ﬁ lest and frore his feot . .
day. ¥ And he missed their home and he landed a couple miles
further north from the sod house. And, well they brought him back
a day or two later and his feet were frozen and he couldn't walk
and they took him down to the Sims Miners Hospital, they called
it. _There was a building down there., It isn't so many years
ago that we were down there and that building was still there
but it's gone now. And he lay there from Christmas until
he died the %ég;gih of March, He had to have his feet amputated.
at the ankles. And he died.//And then my grandmother was left
there with those two boys. Neither one of 'em were big enough
to help much, So she hired a young man that came in to...came

from the east., He had had experience farming and so on, worked

in Illinois, Ohlo and that was this man, my stepgrandfather.
#

g7
That was in esshsyesewer when he came,

Larry: What was his name?

’\6
Mrs, Conitz: Langenhurst. He came from Germany when he was
8
esshdeen years old aﬁg_when he came out to North Dakota he must
>
have been around AT , something like that. He was younger

m 2
than my grandmother. Thég grandfather was only #ensy-fwe when he
died, when he froze his feet. Oh, this stepgrandfather...oh, we

called him Grandpa afterwards because he married my grandmother,

He helped her with....He worked for her that summer and then in— — -

the fall he married her, about nine months after he came to North

Dakota, Then they built another house. He took a homestead and

they built a house. Tt was about two miles further west. They

built it out of sandstone. Sandstone., And there was a hill
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3/y
about of a mile east of us and there was a big cave
up there and we kids we called that a cave. Afterwards, my mother
said, "Well that's where the rocks came from for this house." And
the sandstones are about this thick and so they éould manage to
build a house., The house was about that thick--about 44§;een ~inches.
Larry: Were they laying sandstone on top of sandstone or was there

.cement or mud or anything mixed in?

Mrs., Conitz: I don't think there was anything between., I couldn't

say because it was all covered on the inside and the outside.
Gilberts funeralhégﬁf>;
Now those sandstones are'?ver here right east of t celit's ¢
e‘ H
little church we used toJM..Some people in New Salem they found out

about those rocks and they went out there and got them. They took

that house to pieces and they made themselves a wall., And it's kind

of interesting to see that.

Larry: But then they dug a hole in the side of the hill and cut
Grondbaiper

out the sandstone-~your stepfeshew did to make this house. That's

a pretty innovative idea.

Mrs. Conitz: Yes., Nellie thought that that thick sandstone would

make a warm house, but it wasn't too warm. The cold would follow
the rocks in you know and....I remember my mother, later on my
mother was living there and we grew up in that little house. And
those rocks would swggte .h‘ék{: '?i”pgail:g}et‘;;at thing and she did
everything to it. One summer she put oil cloth on it., DBut it
would always peel off because the moisture from the outside would
come in,

Larry: ©So it was probably a pretty sturdy house though.

Mrs, Conitz: It was sturdy. Yes. You bet it was. It stood.
Larry: At the time &het~yomwr-movedswthat your stepgrandfather

moved over to this house that he had built out of sandstone and
Is?
your dad by that time would have been about *Eseeri®
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Mrs. Conitz: Yes, something 1if@ that. Fifteen, sésebeerr years
*73
old. But his father died when....He was born in sewerrcyetirmees
13 .
His dad died when he was around thereeen or &eoweweermy He would

have been esshty=sewer., Seowchbimbhpees—reah Hovwrbeens And

then I don't know just how long we lived in that sand house...
A
oh, I guess I do too. Grandpa Longhurst put a sign above the
1889. '89.
door...eégh%eeﬁgzighéy-ﬁdaeu, So it was in odehtywmiwe, Well
‘13 81,

then my dad would have been
Sixteen, "f—trlﬁrdsﬂe told us a story one time about how kthey
were building this house and they had it all built except to
plaster on the inside., They plastered on the inside. And he
sald they plastered with mud., I don't know what kind of mud it
was. But Grandpa and Grandma went to town or something. They
left the place for a while. And he said, "Well, I was plastering
there and working." And when they got back they told him that
there had been an Indian uprising. And he didn't know anything
about it. It seemed like they were gone several days. Where
they went to I couldn't say. But that was when Sitting Bull
stirred up the Indians and all around they heard about it and
they were warned and they barricaded one of the hills out there,
But Sitting Bull was captured so that ended all right. Oh, and
this Grandpa Longhurst he was a very industrious person and he
had experience in farming, etrmso—sRy—iou-4mewy OO0 things went
pretty good then.

Larry: Was he able to keep the land from your grandmother:s first
husband then?

Mrs., Conitz: Yes. Just that one homestead. It was just a homestead.
Prwed up on it yet.
't diFed—iere—tons—emougy Dut my grandmother did.

And so she had that. And then this Grandpa, stepgrandpa, took a

And Grandpa hadn

homestead. That was our home then. And where the stone house

was built, that was his homestead and then he took a piece of
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railroad land. And when my dad was bwensmeeme he took a homestead
oN “
smer another piece of railroad land. That way we managed to get
a big farm together. And then they bought some pasture land.
That was a half a section on the south of the homestead, I think.
AN worlted
It was railroad land. So when Grandpa Longhurst ¥t the place

there were about seven quarters I think that they had.

Larry: <h-wolbeth-oo=atl-yall Did your dad go to school then ews
saeblre—comrery* In that area all the way through elementary school
I imagine., Well he would have gone to school in Germany and
I1llinois.,

Mrs. Conitz: Yes, My dad was, as far as he went, he was quite

well educated. That is he was thorough, thoroughly educated. And
he said when they arrived in Illinois the first thing they did they
went to school., And when the English school vacation started, why
then he went to a German school that they still had then. Then
when they came to North Dakota there weren't any schools and his
mother was,(é suppose his father was toé) terribly worried about
that. But there was a lady...wife of another homesteader living
not too far away from their home, a mile or so, so my grandmother
made arrangements with that lady to teach him, So he said, "1

sat on one side of the table and she sat on the other." She
taught him then until they got the schoolhouse built. Now this
old gentleman that had his et frozen he helped build this school-

__house, J And this is an old treasures book., School treasures book.

And =dghi—~sm here he got a warrant for his services in helping
build that schoolhouse. He got seven dollars for helping build
the schoolhouse. But he didn't cash that check before he died,

What's the date on that?

Larry:
Mrs., Conitz: Yes. See he worked on that schoolhouse and they must

not have paid them right away. They were short of money. The
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school districts didn't have any money then either, And

Grandma <=etrsme got that check., 'Cause Grandpa died in March,

Larry: Can you tell me the name of this neighbor lady that

taught your father?
\

Mrs, Conitz: I think her name was Mrs. Kréﬁse. But she moved

awaye. A lot of those people stayed until they proved....And then
it was Jjust too much for them, you know. Dry seasons and so on.
They Jjust moved away. Yes, This is a sod barn that they built.
The house is over M) there.

. roop
Larry: I was going to ask you what the name of the church gn-p was

2000

in Illinois that sponsored, or, you said there were {we-irvmdred

people that came from Iliinois to New Salem,

Mrs. Conitz: Yes, that was this German Evangelical ceesdie—churc

Shab-wes 1t was a Reformed church lder on but at the time they
came it was Evangelical, German Evangelical Church.

Larry: Do you know if they had negotiations then with a land
company? Was it a land company that was finding all these people
land when they got here?

Mrs. Conitz: The railroad company was anxious for people to come

out here. qu see the bridge across the Missouri had just been
yA
built in edghém-twe and the railroad company wasS....now this says

1880's ‘
here, "In the early eishbeesedghties the German Evangelical

Lutheran Church of Illinois had been sponsoring colonies of German
immigrants to settle in Dakota Territory on homesteads. The Nor-
thern Pacific Railroad was instrumental in bringing these new
settlers to Dakota Territory."

Larry: Now this fellow that you said his name was Mister Look

or F. Look...f\

Mrs. Conitz: Lifk.

7~

Larry: Lifk. He worked for the Northern Pacific then?
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Mrs., Conitz: He probably did. I don't know if he worked for him-

self or.... But his job was to go out and show the homesteadersS.ecee.
e

##e house that he built was the very first house built in New

Salem, He must have done pretty well because he built quite a

nice large house, It's up on the east edge of town here, Still in

good shape.I!Bid VOU BV e T e thr e e TS T Y b oekte e

il @RS B S L L e G AR SO BRI L L O abont New..Sadem

peosklet..of . New Salem

Larry: What ever happened to the old immigration house then? Did
that last for quite a while or did that...

Mrs., Conitz: I «weeiy don't know., I always wondered too just who

took that building. DMost likely somebody took it over and used it
for something else. DBut generally those old buildings stood there
for years. Now it may have been standing there when I was growing
up. It surely was. But...l wish I had the sense that I think I've
got now, I wish I'd had that when I was growing up. I'd ask my
Dad guestions. I didn't ask much.

Larry: I didn't either until later.

Mrs. Conitz: This old Grandpa that froze his feet he was buried in

a grave right north of Sims., See it was in the wintertime and
there was no transporatation, you know, gettin' anyplace. And
there was snow., That winter was particularly, very heavy snow,
And they'buried him there. And he lay there on the hillside .

3 87 3 ',,,,\4.,\/,\201,\3 b ] =) I
from edshdsmsexen until about #d pelrpadeet-and-three, And

then my dad and my uncle and a couple of cousins that had come
out at the same time and this Grandpa’Loﬁéenhurst moved his body
up to the Peace Cemetary.

Larry: What year wses did your dad start going to an actual

country school after being taught by this neighbor lady?
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Mrs, Conitz: Well, the schoolhouse was built in eéghéyﬂgﬁﬁf'

before my grandfather died and then the next spring I think they

started. In those days they'd only have about two months at a time,
And generally in the summer, you know, through the summer, maybe

in May and June, something like that. And then we'd have a couple
ﬁonths in the fall. Well that was extended and they had six months
later on and seven months and gradually they increased their terms
until we had our regular rnine months.

21 .
Larry: And your dad took a homestead too that, when he was swanlim.

s

Mrs, Conitz: When he was bwe;%;-eae he took a homestead also.
’8' se ©

Larry: That would have been in edshbeew-miwety, ... He was born

: '73, .

in eewewEirsRpee=11gnt?

: '73
Mrs, Conitz: wevenby=tire?.,

[
Larry: So that would have been aéQQZywéeurn

Mrs, Conitz: Yeah. His birthday was in November. Oh, this is

the schoolhouse. That school building is still in good s§2pe.

D . -
It was used until about th years ago. That's when the Judson
school district was annexed to this New Salem district. And then

they sold the old schoolhouses out there. And this schoolhouse

r
had three égga%ssin it and was very heavy. They could hardly move

it. Being such an old school they had worn out that many floors.

And now my nephew has it out there and he's using it for a shop.
him
One day I was looking at that old schoolhouse and I said to thamﬂ

I said, "Do you know that's...I was baptised in this building?

And my grandparents, my stepgrandparents, my stepgrandfather,
See)

they were married in that building?" ¥ The minister would come out

from this church in New Salem and put on services about twice a

wheon it wis So

month during the summer =® he could travel. This is how our school-

house looked when we had a school program one time., That was in

g1z,
ﬁé&ﬁéi@ﬁm%ﬂﬂlﬂe. I wasn't going to school then.
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Larry: That was also used as a church,

Mrs., Conitz: It was used for. church services, yes. I think it was

I : : :
until eSreteen—brenbyembtdisme that they decided here in New Salem that

the people had transpdﬁ%%ion now and wees—gidiltirare—tboypatllc minis-

ter didn't have to come out anymore. So people could come into

church, So that's what we did.
Larry: How far is this country schoolhouse-church from New Salem?

4en
Mrs. Conitzs Well, it was about e miles.

Larry: North and west?

[
Mrse Conitz: North and west, yes. At first it was ggn'miles and

then they moved it so the school would be one of two schools in
the district. That was the only school at first. And then they
moved it a couple miles west and built another school on the east
side. Then it was a little bit further, about b&géve miles from
towne

Larry: Who were some of the early neighbors that your grandmother
and stepgrandfather had? Or your real grandfather before he

/l '

died? Who were some of the othg{ people that setled? A
) N 1 ‘
Mrs. Conitz: Well, there was Zetlows, Singers, Bolson, Tridays,
LA} ;

Freelings. I have an aunt living in town here. ©She's my aunt

by marriage, she's a Freeling daughter, She's ﬁééig;h%WE and she
remembers quite a bit, well she remembers everything. And she
remembers some of the things that were going on at that time.
Larry: Were all of these neighbors of your grandmother and grand-
fatherg «were-thes all members of this group that had moved up?

Mrs. Conitz: A great many of them were, yes. Nearly all of them

were. Yes,
Larry: And they were all Germans from Russia?

Mrs., Conitz: No, no. Not from Russia. They were all from Germany.

And most of them stopped off in Illinois and then they came out

here. No, the German-Russians came later, I can remember when
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: - : . 1906 - 7
they came., Just droves of them come in during, oh about wmeweteen
BieT—mEOR, 1n there. I was a little girl. And they settled
much, still further west. Twenty-four miles from New Salem.

Larry: Well, it'd be closer to Glen Ullin, then, do you think?

Mrs. Conitz: More north of Glen Ullin, Quite a ways north. ¥es.

And there's people living out there yet, except those ones that
have died. That came from that., And those people talked German.,
My dad got along fine with them. He raised lots of horses and
that's the first thing that they needed was a team of good strong

come and
horses and theyYwould buy the horses.

21

Larry: Now when your dad was sweatmmene he took up a quarter sec-—

tion homestead himself.

Mrs, Conitz: Yes.

Larry: Did he live at home yet with his stepdad and his mother?

Mrse. Conitz: Yemtre—lived-iitbi-itymee 1¢S5, he did. Because they
just had one other boy and my dad was the main helper. And then

2
when he was about twemtywedshs-he was married to my mother.,
Larry: So that would have been then in...?

Mrs. Conitz: Nineteen-o-one, they were married. And her parents

—Soper—tew d1ldn't exactly come with the colony, but they got out
here through that too. They came a Xgar later. Grandpalgégel.
He came a year later. He came in eégéz;iéeur and he took a home~
stead too and got things started, a house built, a small house
and then he went back to Chicago and got the family. There were
six children in my mother's family at that time, but there was one

born out here and they were neighbors too. They belonged to that

same church but tggy came out a little bit later. The first church
' 3'
group came in edshbymstlaieeas,

Larry: Now this group that met in the schoolhouse, <that-had-thelir

chueelr-serrives—imrtire-sclhroodrewses was that a chapter or a re-

grouping of Germans who were Reformed Lutherans from Illinois?
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Mrse. Conitz: DNo, it was this German Evangelical Lutheran.

Larry: Oh, but that was the same church that ¥ they had gone
to in Illinois,

Mrs, Conitz: Yes., That was the group. Even in Germany my folks

had that kind of a church, —lﬂ++7nrhh""nh Lheres In German it was

N Evaisqalica ?ncden s ( i“"‘S"‘ s)

Deutches Evgaleca Freedons Demlndy.

Larry: So your parents had gone to school together ehen-probably. .

or had gone to church together out here.

Mrs, Conitz: Oh, yes. All those people went to church together,

yes. Funerals and weddings and all those things. Now my mother
didn't go semchiipeh—enemss to school out in this country. ©She had
what education she had she got in Chicago.

Larry: Before they came?

Mrs. Conitz: Before they came out here. And she only got to about

the third grade. But my dad was probably about fifth or sixth
grade, That's what he got. He was a big boy. He was about
sexgg;eeﬁ vears old when he was going to school out here in

that old schoolhouse.

Larry: There were a lot of cases of that weren't there? Whefre
people or boys would have to spend so much time at home helping
their parents that they would continue going to school even though
they were s&éé;en or sgggﬁ%ear

Mrs. Conitz: Oh, yes. My husband told about thattoo now. He

| 709

came in mdmebeem—msmes, He was one of the smaller kids. And he fd;J

they didn't have a schoolhouse built. So they had school in
their house, their living room. Now it wasn't a very big room.

And he said then they'd have a teacher. There was one lady teacher

17, 18
and those big boys they were all seweﬁéeeaqueaghteeﬁ years old,

maybe older, but their parents wanted 'em to learn to read a little
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bit you know. There was no education out here otherwise., And
G.00
he said the teacher called school at wéwe—el-edleek in the morning
Because
and by noon all the boys were out in the barn. &5 they began to

act up she'd say, "Get out." And they'd go out to the barn.

Larry: Now where did your husband‘'s family sezs}e?
a (e
Mrs, Conitz: They sett%gd out there too, only further east, near
N\ 4

Yoﬁngtown. Close to Yoﬁngtown. See, there was Bluegrass, that's

where we were andees
Larry: Was that a settlement or an actual town there called
Bluegrass®?

Mrs, Conitz: There was a postoffice. And a creamery and the families

of these two. My husband's family, the Conité%ﬁlived there. In

fact they had their home in the same building where the store was.

In Bluegrass., And then across the road there was the creamery and
. the man who van the creamery, &"'

then there was¥the buttermaker, they called And that creamery

was kind of a cooperative thing. The farmers all around...l don't

know if they put money into it, /They must have to build the thing.

My dad was in that and had an office, secretary or something.

But I was very small then., I can just remember that that building

burned up, that creamery, And then they rebuilt. And that old

building is still out there. It belongs to my brother-in-law.

He uses it for a grainery or something.

Larry: But there%ﬁﬂ%no rail lines from there?

Mrs, Conitz: No. The railroad was down here. And anybody that

wanted to come to New Salem, they had to drive for miles on both
sides of the railroad. There were people that came down from
Hazen, south of Hazen, That was before the railroad was put
through up there too. And it would take 'em two or three days

to come to town. I remember people coming from the northwest and
staying overnight at our house,'cauu i was tvo far fomakte W in

owe trip.
Larry: On their way to New Salem.




Alice Conitz - 14

Mrs, Conitz: Yeah. In the wintertime, especially. And they'd

i @;Zg
stay overnight and back the next night.
Larry: So you had kind of a halfway house.

Mrs, Conitz: That's what it was. All those places were. Any-

body would take anybody in, you know. Give 'em lodging overnight

and get warmed up and have food and everything,

; b4

Larry: &ewr=chrey wv:*vwﬁy%ur mother had seven brothers and sisters$

Mrg, Conitz: There were seven in the family. There were four

sisters and two brothers in her family.

Larry: Did all these people that came up from Illinois g=éde-tirey

retain pretty close contact?_

- 2 .
arempens—t-tirmrelr tretirenye

Mrs, Conitz: They went to church as much as they could, you know.

It was hard for them to attend services regularly the year round.
But in the, from April as soon as the weather was nice and the
minister could come out, then we'd go over to the schoolhouse for
services. And we got Ehere one way or the other., My dad talked
about one neighbor. Kr;bkles was another family that lived near
there. About three miles I think they had to church,‘/ﬁhd to
school., The school was right in the middle of the district. And
they came to church with a géggggggg*and a pair of oxen., They
passed my grandparents' place there., She was out in the garden
near that old sod house. And she didn't hear them coming and when
she did raise up, she frightened the oxen. And they took off,
Oxen were very hard to handle if they took a notion to go. And

: , They langhe d about i+, but

it was quite a spill T gukss,. ﬂﬁ%body got hurt, I guess.

Larry: Were oxen used a lot in those early days for work animals?

Mrs, Conitz: Yes. The horses that were brought up from Illinoi§,

a lot of 'em were horses that had been worked out. ESpgfially
from Chicago. One lady told me not too long ago, Mrs. Hayden,

she said "Yo%ﬁnow they had a streetcar strike about that time in

e T
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the edshiies——edshby-emwe or so in Chicago. And the streetcars

were all put in a shed., They used horses to pull the streetcars.
And those horses were sold to these farmers that were going out
to farm.

Larry: And they were already worked out.

Mrs., Conitz: Yes. And they weren't just too good. I heard my

dad say one of their horses was fairly good. I don't know where
they picked up their team. The other one wasn't too good. Now
I don't know, did they have oxen? I couldn't tell you for sure,
but the neighbors around there did have oxen and some of them had
one ox and one horse and just whatever they could get together,

you know.

Larry: Wees—teindof-machimes-would they have used dn-these.days

they broadcast by hand?

Mrs. Conitz: Broadcast by hand. Yeah. My dad would tell how

they'd do that. They had a bag over their shoulder, you know.
Real rhythmic, you know, so it would get spread out., Then they'd
and workd it 1u thet way,

probably go over it with a harrowgv And I can remember the thing
that he used for planting corn. I see there's one out here at
this church museum that we had out here. And it was a thing about
this high and it had two handles on top and'they put the corn in
and they opened up one, stomp it into the ground and open it and

the right number of kernels would fall into the earth and then

they'd close it again., There wouldn't be much of a hole down below

and they'd stomp that.
until I guess they tried planting corn with a regular grain drill

later and then they got the corn planter,

'8o's
Larrys:s How would they do the threshing in the esghédos. and early
90's
winebes”

Mrs. Conitz: They did it with horsepower. My folks belonged to
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the company. A bunch of fellowsugzgttogether and they had &
horsepower. I can just remember that horse,ﬁwg.was quite small.

A man sat in the center of this thing and the horses went around
and they had about five teams, I think, something like that and
he had to keep them moving. And there was the power takeoff

that went over to the thresher and you know at first they didn't
even have feeders on those threshers. They had to work back
there and put the grain in. And in front where the blower was
they had to be taken away by hand. So it was a dirty Jjob. Here's
a picture of an old threshing machine. Here's Misteré%hod.

They pronounced it %o because it's a German name. He was quite
a slicker, I guess., He got the farmers out there and he took 'em
for all he could get.

Larry: Oh, that's right. The wrong side up thing happened outside

. of New Salem, didn't it?

Mrs, Conitz: Yes, Right over east here. Mister Christianson

and Mister Christianson got here about thiao hours before the
regular train came through.with these settlers. Somehow the
train that he was on dumped him off about two miles east of New
Salem and all his stuff. He had horses and wagons and a plow. He
had one plow, picked that up somewhere, And dumped him off

there and he stayed overnight under agzzgggk'box. He was tagnty—
e years old. And the next day the group came on the train,
Larry: But he was with that group?

Mrs, Conitz: He wasn't with them., He was ahead of them, but still

he belonged to this church. He must have gotten the idea from
that group of settlers that came out of the church.

Larry:s He sounds Scandinavian.,

Mrs, Conitz: 7Yes. He was born in the northern part of Germany,

Or in Jheve -
wesEe., close to Schleswig~Holstein. Y That's where he was born, I

think, and it was close to Denmark. So that's where he got his
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Danish name. Otherwise, he was German. He has two daughters
living in town now.

Larry: You don't remember then your grandfather or your step-
grandfather or your father telling you about early farmers using
threshing floors or these flailing sticks that they would thresh
with.

Mrs. Conitz: No. The only thing that I ever saw of that was

when my mother threshed beans or things like that. There was a
man down in New Salem, a little bit over to the side there, and
he had a threshing machine and he came through the country there
and threshed for the people after wheb-powew—er that horsepower
deal was given up.

Larry: But your stepgrandfather had gone in with some other

people to buy the horsepower rig that they used.

- Mrs. Conitz: Yes. It was a company outfit. And then the threshing

machines would come through. I remember there were a Johnson outfit
from Sims., There were several brothers and they had a big outfit

and they came through and they threshed for us a couple of times.

‘ 1906, ‘07, ‘o8,
Nineteen hundred and eight, or earlier than that~—ainsz@eﬁgsii,

: Y .2 A . :
pevey-—ai@hbe )But in mdseteemr—wine-my father joined up with a

(s
--we called it a cqﬁpany rig-—~there were #+#peem farmers in that

and they were the Hawleys and those people. They were further
south. We were about the furthest one northwest here and there
wereﬁﬁgigwa farmers. They had to have enough so they had £4éieen
rigs--hay racks, you know, to haul the bundles. And it was a bQig
one., When they came in, there was around tgég;y-men or so., And
my mother used to bake bread, piles of it, you know, so that she'd
have enough food. And they had their own meat. Pork and cured
hams and things like that.

Larry: So when farmers would go together and.fg;rg.company to

buy a threshing machine, they wouldn't use a cook car then to feed
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the people that were on the threshing crew?

Mrs. Conitz: No. Our crew didn't,but there were some that did.

Larry: You were saying there was a man who came from Glen Ullin...

Mrs. Conitz: Hebron, F—iredigime-cae—irerty %ﬂ%ween Hebron and Glen

7

Ullin. His name was Stachey and he had a cook car. But they

never came to our place to thresh so I never saw a cook car. In
fact, that cook car was purchased by my brother-in-law later and

he added it to his house. It's in that house. TYou can't see it

now, but it's in there just the same. It's a kitchen.,

Larry: Would these threshing crews hire extra mene -rired-men—besides
Phe—fomnewa-rhat-wou+d help do the threshing? Would they have to
take on added help?

Mrs. Conitz: Oh es., Lvery fall when 1t was time to go threshin
y ¥ Y

why generally my father would go himself but sometimes he would
send a man and they each had to furnish a wagon and a team of
horses.

Larry: Bid—you—er Did your dad always have a hired man through
those years?

Mrs., Conitz: Yes he did., Even when my grandfather was there,

There were three...he and my father and they would hire a man, e~
whea~.;Fhey had one man by the name of Charlie Keller. He was a
cowboy., He stayed there, oh, smdefimdpetsm for years, especially
during the winter. Those hired men would..eey were glad to get

a place to stay for the winter and they would just work for their
board and room,

Larry They'd get wages in the summertime and in the wintertime
they'd work for...

Mrs., Conitz: But I think my folks always paid their men. It

wasn't so much., Fifteen dollars a month, maybe. But the fellows
that came to work for us, they would tell us. "I worked a certain

place, worked for my room, board and tobacco." T‘ul hed fo luv-e thewr
S, . Jobscco !
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Larry: Did your father and your stepgrandfather eie-ikey have
most of that acreage cultivated then or was most of it grazing
land?

Mrs, Conitz: Lots of it was grazing land because they just

B A
couldn't plow.Yall that land. My dad got a tractor in :

eghrreew, a Titan tractory and then he began td break bigger fields.

They would break where it was easy;ﬁig you know, where the land
was smooth and everything, but there was just lots of grass for
grazing.

Larry: Can you remember or did your dad ever tell you about when

that area was Jjust open range? WreRr—Fou--couldobake. your cattd-e-out

Mrs., Conitz: I remember that because they would let the horsess..
why

when the fields were cleared,Ythe horses would just go and the

cattle could go as far as they wanted to. And in the spring they'd
round up their horses. The cattle they sorta kept their eye on

so they didn't get too far. There were some children going to
school, our school there, and they had to stay out of school every
other day to herd the cattles., That's the way they'd say it.ﬂhd
they didn't have any fences to keep the cattle in at first and
they just had to herd the cattle. And my mother's brother, he
herded cattle. He didn't go to school, He had very little education
because he herded cattle., This story is interestinge..

Larry: Your mother's brother,

Mrs, Conitz: Yes., Fred Nagel.

Larry: <Fwanbted.fo ask yvou something. else-ahbewbwessly Pbuld the

farmers wives, the farmers that Jjoined together to form the company
or cooperative to buy this large threshing machine, would the
farmers' wives help out the lady that was doing all the cooking and
baking and everything?

Um olfdens. !
Mrs, Conitz: Oh, yes. Different ladies would come and help my
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mother and sometimes we'd have a girl helping us through that

period.

Larry: &n you
remember examples of threshing mealé? YBu know, what a meal would
consist of--the average meal, the basic things that were in each
meal.,

Mrs., Conitz: Well, we always had ham. We had bacon for breakfast,

of course, and lots of eggs. But they used quite a bit of pork==

ham and then...
Larry: Would theW breakfasts be one of these big German breakfasts?

Mrs, Conitz: A big one, yes. And my mother would fix a pot of

beans. She had a big beanpot. It was a gallon jug. And she'd
have those beans ready to bake. ©She'd put 'em in the oven at

night and have that stove going good. It was an old coal stove.

By morning she'd have the best baked beans you ever saw. They were
just delicious. I enjoyed those meals too. I was just a kid. And
then they would butcher something, maybe butcher a pig, so we had
fresh meat. And there were a lot of people who...we didn't do it...
maybe my grandparents did, but I, Grandpa Nagels 'cause they raised
sheep,they would butcher a sheep so they'd have fresh meat. Course
that meat had to be all cooked and used up 'cause it wouldn't keep
when it was warm, you know. And later, after we had our little
Ford car, my dad would run into townbnd get maybe a big chunk of
meat, ﬁg; pounds or £éég;eﬂ pounds or more, bring it home and my
mother would roast it right away so it would keep and that would
take care of a couple of meals. And the men would sleep out in the
barn. They all had to bring their own bedding and sleep out in hay-
lofts,

Larry: What meals would there bezL

Quageezes

Mrs. Conitz: Yes, there would be a good breakfast and that would
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early, about
Larry: What would the breakfast consist of?

Mrs., Conitz: Oh, cereal-—oatmeal, especially, and lots of bread

and bacon, eggs, beans, those baked beans my mother used to make,
'fﬁey had a lot and just a lot of good food that she could prepare
herself., Pancakes, not waffles, but pancakes, She made pancakes,

fhreshers
but I can't remember that she made pancakes for emesdefaset too .

much because things had to be ready when they came in. But 1
know they had pancakes out there,
Larry: French toast?

Mrs, Conitz: Yes, my grandmother used to serve French toast and

they likel that real well. And for lunch, well it was bread and

sliced sausaqund cheese ?nd coffee, a big potful of coffee
coulda't
It'd be so hot that they*® drink for a while. And for dinner

beef, pork, ham, sauerkraut. Lots of potatoes. I remember when

the threshing machine was coming, we kids would go out and dig

Q0 -
potatoes and we'd dig a whole sackful, a hugdredrpound sack, grain

o layt

sack, and we had a little wagon and there™ be enoughvand there

wouldn't be many left,

ok & ') ; - —— e atier Wi ORI N
Lerr 7 TOTaT e e B Y S M — g o o e SUBDDOEE ,

g Dlg. crau. Jdlee—tt
-

T r s
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My mother would make fried potatoes for breakfast.

French fries, you know. Have the grease real hot and then put the
Threshers 9ot thet, Joo.
potatoes in, put the lid on$ qQf, they were good.wv And maybe for

supper we got something like that, you know. Lots of vegetables.
Cabbage, beans...
Larry: Would you put up a whole crock of cabbage?

evroclts,
Mrs. Conitz: Oh, yes. She had big stone e, she called 'em

(2.4 2
stonec;2i5 and one was especially large. I think it was tiégbr-

~Gawe gallons it would hold and she'd make that full of sauverkraut.
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And, oh that was good. She had a big slaw cutter--this long.

You don't see 'em very much anyTore. She also put up beans

that way. They called ‘'em §chni;zelaum. They'd take the bean,
you know, long bean, and they'd take a sharp paring knife and
they'd slit. ZSchnitzelaum, you know, that's German for slivering
and they were in real thin slices, cut on the diagonal, e

and then she packed them in jars just like sauerkraut and sprinkled

a little salt on now and then and keep tamping it down with a

g;igforntshcr s
: or somethingflat, you know. And then when the ja a.s
liKe

full, there'd be a juice on there just 9@ with sauerkrauvt and
she'd put a\sigggiggﬁ on top and a dish with a stone on top. She'd
tell me‘wéo get a big rock,vancf wash it off nice and clean, put
that on top.‘ Then she'd cover it with cloth, just like the
sauerkraut and it would ferment and it would keep. That was

before we had canning,

Larry: Would you add any water to the sauerkraut?

Mrs, Conitz: You didn't have to. You'd have the juice out of

the sauerkraut. And the beans the same way. So it was quite a
strong brine, ﬁhﬂiwouldvtaste it to know just how much you had
to make of it. It was quite salty. And then in the wintertime
she'd go down in the basement and get a potful, a panful, as much
as she needed for a meal or a few meals and freshen it, She'd
boil it for awhile with clear water, maybe a few minutes, Suusonew
and then pour that off to get the salt out of it. And then she
would boil it until the beans were done. Jhose beans weren't as
good as the beans we get now, those nice green beans, but with
pork, especially, they were good., And she'd fix 'em with a cream
sauce, make a cream sauce with milk, you know, and they were good.

Larry: You would do that with beans and sauerkraut both, boil them

in fresh water to get the salt out?
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Mrs., Conitz: Yes, to get some of the salt out.

e'[ial"'(""f' dnd..then ndd SOME- MY U'"f":.‘\.,:h Y“"\'*‘Q‘V‘,gnd bOﬂ_ th@m 'h]f—‘%t

for—g=TTEETE while until. ..
é%gt;ﬂkﬁmwévnﬁtﬁT‘ Yeee. Boil them until they were done, you

know. Test the beans. They were a little bit tougher,

Sauerkraut didn't take so long.

Larry: But you could or your mother could keep that then, all
winter long.

Mrs, Conitz: Yes, that would keep. Until we got it used up,

duvia
you know, 4 the winter. Never had any left by spring.

Larry: Would you have a barrel of pickles, then, too?

Mrs., Conitz: Oh, yes., Lots of pickles.

Larry: Would they be cured in crocks or barrels?

_ , barrels
Mrs, Conitz: Yeah, in barrels. She didn't use wooden ewensmks very

much, She just had these crocks,
Larry:s Would they stay hard ell winter long or would they get
soft by spring? The pickles at the bottom of the crock?

Mrs, ConitZ: Well, as I remember it, those pickles, if there were

any they were always good eating. Yes., I guess we'd clean ‘em up,
you know, Yes, they were always good. And then she would dry
corn too, Sweet corn., She liked to raise sweet corn. We

didn't like the field corn. That was a little tougher., We ate
that if we had to. But sweet corn, yégx;ggvid parboil it a little
bit to set the milk. And then sliver it off, you know. And

then spread that on cheesecloth on a frame. I think she used

a window screen and put the cloth on top of it and set it out

in the sun to dry. And when it was good and dry she'd put that

in bags and hang it up in the pantry.

Larry: How would she fix that in the wintertime?
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Alice: In the winter they would e s UL water on

it and let the corn soak. Maybe it'd take, maybe all day.

Or she'd set it., At night I think she'd put the water on the
corn——a dishful, you kn‘o:\r::‘vu %Cgisfgei‘%mvs\ro%?c‘in,sxglbl‘:u.She'd let
it stand overnight. And in the morning, then she'd boil that
corn until it was done.

Larry: Was it good?

Bob: Yes, we just loved it.

Larry:s That's the first time I've ever heard of doing that.

Thank you very much,,'cause it sounds to me like it would be

delicious,

Mrs, Conitz: It was good. ©Oh, yes, we...yes, you fixed it just

the way you wanted it. My mother always creamed it, We milked
cows so we had lots of cream. She'd dump a half a cup of cream
in th%vgad butter, salt and pepper.

Larry: Well, that sounds great. Séd—se-do—amypshinss llere
there any other methods of preserving things from the vegetables
that she would use, dry peas and navy beans.

Mrs, Conitz: They were all dried too, you know. Dried in bags.

My grandmother--both grandmothers——would have bags of that stuff
to last over the winter. Didn't have to buy much., They'd buy
sugar and coffee'and my mother's parents, when they ran out of
coffee, they brought a barrel of coffee with them wheh they

came out and when they ran out of coffee, instead of buying all
the coffee, they took barley and roasted it. Made coffee out

of that., It was a brew, you know, but it wasn't too good. She
said she couldn't stand that old barley coffee. I imagine it
tasted like Postum.

Larry: Now when you dry peas, you don't want the pea to get too

_ by W ) "
woIUdTwdeily L0

ripe, do you;?eveﬂmwé%h..
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e
Mrs. Conitz: Well, they did. They let 'em get ripe. Yeah,

Just ratlldy vipe- o .
they were ripe., ¥They could be planted in the spring.

Larry: So they were allowed to dry in the pod then?

Mrs, Conitz: Yes. Yes. They let 'em get dry and then we'd

pound ‘em out, flail 'em out with something flat, yesEEeL

and take away the leaves and the pods. Hold up in the wind

like thés and...peas and beaﬁéﬁ:ﬂ'}vﬁﬁé‘é%‘gk ones andess

then there were the China peas. My grandmother, my mother's
mother had what you call China peas and they were kind of little
three cornered things and they were yellow. These garbanzo '
beans make me think of them but then they weren!gff;rge. They
tasted like them,

Larry: And they would plant red beans, too? Kidney beans?

Re
Mrs, Conitz: Oh, yes. idney beans. They saved all their

own seed, ameememeew ond then a neighbor lady might have a
different kind and they'd exchange. And stey pretty much right
in the neighborhood.

Larry: Did they have a root cellar oRiiitegesDclow the Swupmme

P, b ol 1 €
Ul VBB a  w ¥o e i & A v

hous

Mrs, Conitz: Yes, I guess you could call it a root cellar,

' and
It was a cellar, was cool down there. We'd pack our potatoes

down there, we'd have a big...
Larry: Now this was below the house.

Mrs, Conitz: Yes, it was underneath the house. It was a cellar.

-

We called g the cellar and that's where everything was put--
the sauverkraut and the beans, that's where we kept them,
Larry: Could you keep carrots and turnips and potatoes and

things like that?
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Mrs. Conitz: Yes. Those things could be kept there too,

We never had the kind of a root cellar that some people had.
They would have dug in the side of a hill and things like
that, but my mother had carrots. We had carrots until they
were used up.

Larry: Were those packed in sand?

Mrs., Conitz: Yes. Very often she'd put 'em in sand. I can

remember that.
Larry: Were there any other kind of vegetables that you could
keep fresh in the basement besides potatoes and carrots?

Mrs. Conitz: Oh, rutabagas, turnips.

Larrv: Parsnips, I suppose.
===t e PP $old about when

. T ) . ) 1 B P
Mrs. Conitz: Yes. And pumpkins. My dadesevisewssse were living

alone there before, during those years we found my grandfather
We eouldat raise much, bot
died and we didn't have much .pow-smewy J# did raise a lot of
pumpkins on that newly broken=up land., And my dad said we had
pumpkin soup every day. And he é:éahe got so sick and tired of
it. It was bread and butter and this pumpkin soup. They had a
cow so they got the milk and it was pretty slim living there, I
guessy at that time. Wh?F they were first getting started. But
later, after Grandpa Langhurst got into the family he took charge.
He got pigs and...he was a farmer, he was trained for that, so
Qﬂla . we never worried about not having enough food.

Larry: I imagine a garden was a pretty big thing, though. You
were pretty dependent upon a good garden. Do you know if farmers

around that area had any trouble finding water?

Mrs., Conitz: Oh, yes. That water problem was a real bugaboo.

This first grandpa of mine, he made a deep well and he never
stg*ck water. And that's why when they moved up to Grandpa
Longhurst's homestead they could get water up there. It was up

on a hill but they still could get water., They only had to go
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down about Z , Shawdy feel, something like that, and

they would get water. But there wasn't a lot of water. Maybe

three or four horses could drink the well dry. Then you'd have

to let it run in again. SO0 wesseee I don't know how many wells e had
I con huk o€

around the place-wthree right offhand. And the one near the

house was very good water., It was hard water--made the best

coffee. And my dad had, instead of having a wooden creamer,

they had that all stoned out with niggerheads.

Larry: What were those? .,
on the faireie,
Mrs. Conitz: Those rocks.you see up Mewms, those real hard ones

you. know.

Larry: Oh, those granite field stones.

A

Mrs., Conitz: Yeah. And Kiﬁg would just go down that well, put

his feet G::grand walk his way down. ©Oh, yes, they had a lot

of trouble with water. Not being able to get water. Then finally
a well driller came to our place. They hired gﬁm: And they

had a well made down in the pasture, about thrééi;aarbeﬁs of

a mile from the house., And got all kinds of water. Now they

had plenty of water for their cattle. The cattle would have to

go down that hill and my dad got a big storage tank and I can
remember he'd say at nigh? he'd say "I turned the windmill on
now." He said, "At bﬁeigg:glslank I'11 go down and turn off

the windmill." And he'd set the alarm and then he'd get up

and walk down and turn off that windmill, But that way he kept
the water for the cattle.
Larry: Hew fhe wells that you had up by the housSe e didn't
have a windmill on them?

Mrs, Conitz: Not the first years, no. We pumped 'em by hand.

They were all fairly easy to pump. But after we had the pasture
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well, had used that for several years, then my dad said, "We'll
try once more and see if we can get a deep well here and maybe

we'll have water closer to the place by tomorrow." And they

did and that was in = and they put a windmill on

that right away. And that weL% is still working. My mother

sold that farm to the Johnny Daﬁls out there and as far as T

know that well is still working. They didn't pump it dry.

larry: I1B2:'%haﬁ-was one of the problems that different farmers
A

¥ getting a good well?

Mrs, Conitz: Wes—sebbing—a—goodvedr+, The water wasn't very

far down but not enough of it right where we lived. Now at

Bluegrass, that's only two miles over., That's where I went

to live after I was married, why they could dig a well in a half

day and it would only be about tﬁ%i%e feet deep. I know we hired
Yourq . qushed up,
a¥kid and he dug that well., All of a sudden the water just ‘ss
e, DBut it was in a lower place and there was a spring near—

by. And the water was close up.

Larry: And under pressure apparently,
ey p pp

Mrs, Conitz: Yes., It Jjust came in. But when we started a farm

after we lived in Bluegrass for about bwengézéhﬂee years. My
husband was a mail carrier out of Bluegrass. His folks owned
this store and they had the post office there. And then the
rural routes were just being started. So they got one started
out there and that was nice. The farmers could get their mail
and they'd been running way to New Salem and Bluegrass to get

it. And we lived in Bluegrass, so it would be handy for his
work. But he wanted to farm. He wanted to give up the mail
hauling after all that time. It was a hard job in the wintertime.
So we started a farm. And we had a lot of trouble getting water.,

The send would jart come in ond close it up
We had one well made and then another one made.¥ And finally we
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had one that we had to handle very carefully, not pump it
and we had woter.

too fastgV But it was brown. ©So if we wanted wash water we'd

have to get that from the dam, out of stock ponds. Every

quarter of land had a couple.

Larry: I wanted to =

what people used in the

for fuel in the wintertime.

Mrs, Conitz: Kerosene., That's what we almost always had to

burn. And then we had the old kerosene lamps.
K4
Larry: But what would they use for heat tas®
Mrs., Conitz: For heating, it was coal, It wasn't too good a

%ﬂh\ redht
grade of coalnost of those mines there. We had one down on

our pasture. And we'd go down and get the coal and bring it up

and store it in the shed. .
Lo pmbomiins: (But later years we would haul coal from isiedss.

that where
e

r near Youngtownvthey had a good hard coal and it was down

Flowas very heavy , T mesn, §ood .
deeper. ¥ Lasting coal, hard coal. You'd put a chunk in, it

would last awhile.

Larry: Now where was Youngtown!#eem—wirere—your-grendfother ..

Naaca - o= asacsep s r=nuto M= NTH 153 LN

Mrs, Conitz: &ache-tess, Youngtown is just about due north of

New Salem and Bluegrass was about five or six miles west oi’ﬂbunj-
town. See, they had those little post offices and prairiesg
semudtmony located different places ® make it handy for the

people.

Larry: Was Youngtown any bigger than Bluegrass?aauwasmﬁvff.

Mrs, Conitz: Yes, I'd say it was bigger. They had two families

living there and then a blacksmith and a store and a post
office, It was =@ a little bit bigger. Yes., Not too
much. During those years, ,Mé were bustling, I'm telling

you, those little post offices and country stores were
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really bustling places. And tREEg,. all that stuff had to
be lugged out thereu;,ﬂﬁ wagons. 1 remember my husband
working with his dad, you know, and they'd have a wagon,
they'd have to have three boxes on it, you know. And then
they'd have a seat up on top of thafﬁﬂ:ésok three of four
horses to pull it., From New Salem out to Bluegrass store.
Larry: Just delivering goods from New Salem to the store.

Mrs, Conitz: Getting it out there to replenish the shelves,

ey, ond then the farmers would come there and get their
supplies. They had almost everything that you would need,
They had shoes and stockings and overalls and nosé:%askets
for the horses. C‘au‘ks)

Larry: ©Saddle blankets, I suppose.

Mrs, Conitz: Yes. Just about everything that a persoh would

litHe
need. I don't know how he got it all packed in thatwstore

ded get
although he gng a bigger store later,
Larry: But in the early years your stepgrandfather burned his
own coal.

Mrs, Conitz: Yes. Yes, we had our little coal mine there.

My mother called it dirt hole 'cause she didn't like that coal
. the house

very well but it worked. It kept w8 warm.

Larry: Did you ever use coal from the Sims mines?

Mrs. Conitz: DNo, that was a little bit too far. They had pretty

good coal down there, but that was too far. There were coal
mines all around. There was a god mine abgﬁt three miles from
our place., It belonged to my uncle, the Carricks. And every
fall #, during those years, my dad would send the hired man
or he'd go himself with a team of horses and go over to that
mine and then they would scrape @ coal, get the dirt off of
it and then they would get the coal out and load it up and

haul it home. But it would always take several weeks of
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scraping to get that. And anybody that wanted coal, hdd go
down there and do that and that way he'd get part of his

coal bill paid. Yeah. He had good coal. It was hard.

Larry: Now the other places you mentioned before...the coal
mine that had good hard coal...was that a mine that went down

in the ground?

Mrs. Conitz: No. It was scraped. Around here they were mostly

scraped off, you know, Heereyrererlineelol-colibiiedhe-eonntiii.

Well, I suppose you heard about the big mine they had in New

Salem, That was a deep mine,

Larry: No.

Mrs, Conitz: There's an air shaft I guess it's called. It's

right over here on the edge of town. Yes, that was a deep
120°s

g the swewbdes it was

an Jamily, Melormick aad Jib (?),

still running,|lIt belonged to McCormickwwhen McCormick was

mine.

here, And they'd get the coal out of the mine. They had
their donkeys inkhe bottom. Quite a few people worked in that
mine, men around town here yet that worked in that mine.,

And then one time they had a fire over there. It must have
been the later part of the 'b-h‘-a_ga'-ge\ They had a fire and it
burned things so that they never could use it anymore. Burned

timbers., They didn't even get the donkeys out of there. They

got a lot of cogl out of there., They also had a mine over &&
f ﬂfﬁ‘u’ \ads #'3'
lgvﬁast Just across Lhiwbr-ewe, | remembered that. Hearing
abﬂut.
SRam 1t .
Larry: Was that a surface mine too or was that a deep mine?

Mrs, Conitz: No, I think that was down. $=tirirmk-dt—rrrs-down
el nob—garey Yeah, I'm sure that was down because later in

some places the prairie caved in. And one man lost a team of
rhalt™
horses that way. They got into one of those, just enough smiyeer

dwwowe, the horses couldn't get out.
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Larry: Did you ever go to Sims when it was still a prospering

town®?

Mrs. Conitz: The first time I went through Sims, it was in

191
nénebeen;Zeveneee& and it was pretty much on the downhill then.

And then they had so many fires after that and finally there
wasn't anything left of Sims. Not much, “ImdoRdé-dkaoees

weddadpp, , Were there a lot of big farms or big ranches around

this area when yesve—grarrdfortirer—or—yom=Lfoiivemer=yires yOU

were a little girl? :

Mrs, Conitz: Not so many bilg ones up around our neighborhood.

They were all homesteaders with their little quarter or two

quarters or three quarters, you know. But the bigger ranches

were south, along the Heart River,

Larry: But there were some bigger spreads down there,

Mrs, Conitz: Yes, ~tbg@giibheiiaeit  liiloaesi ey there was a

.

\

Wicks ranch, my/gad talked about that. That was closer to

Flasher. The Orﬁstens had quite a bit down there., A lot of
people I didn't even know.

Larry: Were there any other foundries, brick foundries around,
besides the one at Hebron and the one down at Sims.

Mrs., Conitz: Not that I know of.

that there was a good grade of clay down here at Sims and that's

what they used for the bricks. They made the schoolhouse in

New Salem mese from that clay and my sister saved a brick. She

found it upfhere. I'm going to put it out here in this museum.(huqha)
To look at that brick I don't think it was very good. But

that schoolhouse was still standing.
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Larry: The old capitol was made out of brick,

Mrs. Conitz: Yes, that was Sims brick,

Larry: ddew-efbllesss Well, let's talk:about transporation

for awhile, now. When your stepgrandfather was farming, where
would he deliver his grain?s&?

Mrs., Conitz: To New Salemn.

Larry: Did a lot of farmers north and west of New Salem <=

A v VR 2 gt M T T I T T U 3

eenr get their flour in the fall from this New Salem flour
mill?

Mrs, Conitz: Some did, yes. Some did. And some went to Glen
Ullin., They had a flour mill there. But I think years back

there was a Mister Dietz., T think that he made flour. My folks
didn't do that. They would buy their flour. I don't know why.

My mother I guess probably thought that she got better bread

. . oo e,
from the flour that was shipped in. But in aeﬁeeeenkefghbeen

wWealee, JUring war time,

just couldn't get decent white flour. I remember my father

took grain to Glen Ullin and had it ground. And then we had a
pretty good grade of flour.

Larry: But this mill lssms in New Salenp—meissssivey did custom

grinding, didn't they? TYou could bring your grain in and get

it ground into your own flour.

Mrse Conitz: I think they did. Now I couldn't say for sure.

I'm sure they did. lmr-swme—blhey-tday——yess

Larry: Where was the dividing line between New Salem and Glen

Ullin? I mean, how far would, how far west would New Salem
draw farmers for marketing and buying groceries and stuff like

| e .
that? Ten miles or iwsedww miles?

D-
Mrs. Conitz: I think not more than ‘;n. From there on to :

Glen Ullin. There just seemed to be a dividing line there.
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el ite=¥d ey Probably ten, twelve miles. And then
they went over there to do business, their banking and every-

thing.

Larry: Did New Salem have more drawing power deo=meu-ikdsk tho
Glen Ullin?

T R < =) »} s o e VOV
vy [ oe i i wij £ N R VAW B v R g NAATA L I\.CU-L.LLE) AV A~ = g v 4

Wiz Or wasn't there any real difference between the two?

Mrs. Conitz: <F—jmwst—dortt-romemeem It was Just whatever

place was easiest to get to, ysamkﬁewf New Salem was quite

a busy place. sb—blve~tdme, They had churches. The business

people saw to it that they got their Catholic church and Pres-
Lutheren

byterian church besides this German EvangelicalvChurch that

we had because people came in that belonged to other religions, £o1ths,

N Aa s i acaan
Larry: And the road to New Salem and Glen Ullin was along the

railroad tracks. wbh-umtil-yot-hiTt

Mrs, Conitz

e

Yes. The road was pretty much straight west to

Glen Ullin., The railroad swung on down into Almont and it

isn't SO0 many years agogp-you--emegh the change that made it
straight across. Thirties, I think it was. The railroads
tried to help as many people as they could, take in as much
territory as they could. By going down to Almont they bumesmisb-
could take care of the settlers that were south of Almont,
almost down to Carson. But we had friends living down there

and they came up to Almont to do their shopping for lumber and
stuff like thatg ,Bécause the railroad was up here. That really
attracted, really was what brought in everything that they

needed.

Larry: —New.we've been .talkins-ebowb-pour.parents..and. soues
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19...

You got married in @Eketeene..
.28

Mrs. Conitz:

2
Larry: Twenty-eight. So you would have been about tu@é%yh

e then., Did you go to school yowsssifd in that same
Schodﬁ?
Mrs. Conitz: Yes, the school that my dad went to. When T

QWO A G« P BTGB oG

started school there it was Jjust a bare schoolhouse. And
there was a splotch of ink on the ceiling. My dad said that
happened when he was going to school. The stove stood in
the middle of the room and one morning the ink bottles were
frozen, so this one boy set the ink bottle on the stove and
he left the top on it and it all of a sudden exploded. And
that ink hit that ceiling. And when I started school in

| 709
e aRdRec—aagmiaes SNat ink SplOtCh was still up

there. They had pever painted that schoolhouse. And then ¢
later years I taught in that school and we had basket socials
to raise money., We usually didn't have any books and o'course
some of my teachers had basket socials too,so they started the
library. But when I was there, I added to that, and one day I
told the school Board, I said, "Now, if you fellows will fur-
nish the labor, I'll buy the paint for the schoolhouse inside.
Because it looked so bad. And they felt a little bit ashamed
of themselves. And I guess they had the money, So they said,
"That's all right, we'll paint the building." And they did

a good job. They not only painted but they put sheet rock in
there so that it's warmer. It was a very cold schoolhouse.

We could only have school until Christmas. And then we'd have
two or three months off. And then in the spring when it got
warm we'd have school again.

120 ?
Larry: What years was that then? In the wenbdes?
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. . . 19%0.
Mrs., Conitz: I started teaching in.sieebeen=tirerrtys

And T taught in that district for abeu%—ééﬁe-yee?er-lzax
years, ¥ewe®, 1 taught in different districts before that.

Larry: Did you go to that school yourself for all eight

grades?

ehddren

Mrs. Conitz: Yes. We all did. There were five of uswand we

all went to school until we finished the eighth grade. Then
we came into town. Stayed with our grandparents or some rela-—
tive or boarded out and took our high school.

Larry: Did you go on then to college

Mrs, Conitz: Yes., I went to school in Dickinson and Valley

City. We all did.
Larry: And then came back and taught in the same school that
your father had gone to school in.

Mrs., Conitz: Yes. In fact I started to teach right out of

high school. No training at all. They could do that in

those days. The certificate I got was called a fourth grade
certificate. And you could teach right out of high school.
And then after you had had two years of experience it would

be extended another three years. So I took advantage of that.
I taught';t;'two years. And then when it was done I could
teach another three years and before the three years were up

I thought I better get myself to school. So I went to college
and el eas finished enough so I could get another certificate,
Higher certificate that lasted longer. And I did that until I
was married and then I wasn't interested in teaching anymore.
Larry: Now there were five of you in your family. How many

children did you and your husband have?
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Mrs, Conitz: We just had one daughter.

Larry: And you were married in éw;:g;;eﬁgheg Did your husband then
have a farm then of his own %et—thgt-timmes

Mrs, Conitz: Well, yes, he was getting started. He had purchased

a quarter of land from his dad and his dad had given up the place
at Bluegrass,and then we bought some more land about a mile away
and then later on we moved out +&s®® and built a farm there, So

we had nine quarters at one time and then he sold some., And when

ILS o""
he died in eéx%y-f&ve~~§?ll, we moved to town in sssbp=blareey We
[
sold our farm in séﬁ%yw%hree=al&'§b I just have two quarters left

out there that I just kept wwewdsed for sentimental reasons I guess,
because one quarter of land came from my dad and I just kept it.
It's just handy.

Larry: And your husband was a rural mail carrier?

Mrs. Conitz: Yes.,

Larry: For four years did you say Ore..?

23 R T {
Mrs, Conitz: For bwenby-biree years. He started in teremby—ewe and
rofy.
he resigned in #ereys=form, SH!!Ziy

that time he had gotten himself established with cattle.

Larry: So you lived on the farm all the while,
=erry

FreertIE=That ne wag Qelrverirre—resd ,

Mrs., Conitz: Yes, we lived on the farm then. Yes. He'd hire a

man to take care of the farm work in the morninqsand then he'd
be home in the afternoons. ded-sher-llater on he changed over to
registered polled herefords. But he got sick. He had a heart
attack and that was the end of that. We had to quit. Sold the
cattle. We kept the land for a few years yet. Rented some of it
out and tried to handle some of it ourselves. See, we were alone

so I helped him many times out there on the tractor.
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Larry: Did your daughter go to that school too?
Mrs., Conitz: Yes.
, Three qenerations 14
Larry: She did. the same little one-room school-

house,

Mrs. Conitz: Yes, she did. Until eighth grade. Then she went to

high school and junior college and university. She teaches out
in California.

Larry: Was that customary for the children of farm families out
in the country to go ahead and finish the eighth grade in their
country school and then board in New Salem if they wanted to go
to high school?

Mrs, Conitz: Yes.

This is Larry Sprunk and the following is the completion of the
2n4d
interview with Mrs. Alice Conitz that was held Sunday, June Gaco%dy

1974,
at Mrs, Conitz's home in New Salem at

‘30
approximately @ge-%hérby in the afternoon.
Q sy R@u&&v

Larry: I was talking last night to Smwst=¥eddd, over south of
Mandand&e—saéé-bha-‘t__.%m asking him where he Wské=dls,
shoppdag and memee his parents bought most of their merchandiseces
wgeHe said that.a.'_‘lqgifh people ~samte- in the

early days would order from the catalogue. Was that done around

here very much?

Mrs, Conitzs I can remember the first time we ordered anything from

a catalogue., I suppose it was about wns

S0, Aadn%hen‘mrnmther ordereiagyied fruits, raisins, prunes, pears,
apricots. She ordered codfis :hé'd have a change g=ypossemany Of
menu.

Larry: Was that ordered through g Montgomery Wards or Sears and

Roebud¥?-
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Mrs+ Conitz: Yeah, I think it was Montgomery, most likely,

And then we gradually began using thosg”.after parcel post
came in, why then we could order things from the catalogues.
Otherwise we came to town here and got our clothing and every-
thing. They had quite a few stores in town at one time., They
must have had seven or eight.

Larry: And T suppose you would have to wait awhile when you
ordered through the catalogue. besarmmyy.,

Mrs, Conitz: Yes, we waited a couple of weeks, you know, maybe

two weeks or so, To mail the letter and for the things to get
back.
Larry: WNew-let.me-

1 + 3 . 1 . o Tz
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Can

you remember people eemsme selling fish in the old days?

S ©
Mrs., Conitz: That wasn't so far back. I was féé&eeﬁ oraagénby

yvears old~-before I was married. Yes, they used to come out
with fish,
Larry: In the wintertime.

Mrs., Conitz: Yeah., I can remember one time a man came through

and he had horses on kind of an enclosed wagon. And he was
selling fish., It was cold so they kept.
Larry: He had a trailer house or asdled house®

Mrs. Conitz: Yes. But then later we sent for the fish ourselves.

We'd send to 9 Minnesota someplace and we'd geta hu£££24 pound
box., There really wasn't a.haégg;d pounds in the box. There

were eéghggfgéve_pounds. That's what it was. And we'd get any
kind of fish we'd want. Just pay the difference in prices, you

know., Herring were the cheapest. We ordered herring the first

time and then my dad said, "Next time we'll get some better fish,"
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So we did. K had good fish.
Larry: They were shipped in on the railroad.

Mrs. Conitz: They were shipped in on the railroad. ,%btcﬂ;Seca?

RIS el r S 2 VoS SN T oy oty ot i v T s S T

I'm not. sure. that .

@L; f‘n‘n’?‘l-r;: Y

TS .WMA and.anlAd
Larry: On the east side of the Missouri,

s DETTFO It Eakese—dt-was-w

there were -e—teot—et gypsy peddlers or just

gypsies and etremr—tirere-wene Jewish peddlers that would come
wit vh

WO b oxsedn
7

PRLDEe—teII e wilreir—rioudd-=lawe wagons full of pots and pans
and knives and forks and axes and hatchets and so forth. sweeé-thesm

W= eMe SO UII0 0O formers—are—pedsdke, \lere there any peddlars

around here?

Mrs, Conitz: I don't remember that kind of merchandise but they

would come out here and peddle clothing—-shirts and clothing
and trinkets. And some real stinky perfume. It smelled you
up. JThey'd give us a bottle of that and they'd stay overnight
at our house because we had a big house. And in the evening

if we'd see a peddlar coming, we'd run. downstairs, "Peddlar
coming,”" And H\eﬂ'l put the herse in the brry oad S‘kl:, cucvn;gk't.
Larry: But most of these people would be peddling dry goods ,’as

ThsEive b
Mrs, Conitz: Yeah, clothing., Shirts and things like that. Socks.

Larry: Were there any gypsies traveling around here?

. . We vead about
Mrs., Conitz: I don't remember ever seeing a gypsy. eede.icdae-

s ® them in stories.

Larry: They must have been just east of the Missouri. Because
*T-94.

a lot of people that I talk to, you know, south of asse

v AV

In the German-Russian area around Ashley and Ellendale, Laloure

and Oakes, they all remember gypsies coming, stealing chickens
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or wanting a handout.

Mrs. Conitz: No, we never had any bad people going through.

These peddlars, there'd be one man at a time and most of them
Jewish. They never could talk very good English. <Germem—or——

They could understand us and we could

understand them, but they were fairly decent. As far as I know
they never did anything. We were just a little bit afraid of
them because they were strange people, Vskitsy—izou-itmomw, but

Qnybody
the folks always kept 'em overnight. Never turned eﬁy awaye

Larry: Did you have a winé:bharger or a standby plant%%q-

£l

Mrs. Conitz: We never had a w1ni:pharger. we didn't when I

.St andley
was a girl. We bought a s%amp—i—ﬁ on our bh:rty-ewa volt

outfit. And we used that several years before the REA came in.

Larry: VWhen did you get the standby plant. Do you remember?

_ tofe,
Mrs. Conitz: We didn't get that until--~oh, in the fea%é%s, I

thinko Yes.
'do’s
Larry: So then the REA came in the later Leowssess
| ' 47 ‘
Mrs., Conitz: Yes, in &fewsmmgewew, | think that's when the poles
/Se'’s
came., We didn't hook up Sdbdsb-gaass until the Lifbtes because

we had just gotten the standby. Thought we'd get some use out
of it first.

Larry: Was there a rural telephone line before thaﬁ?—baek—ﬁn

Mrs, Conitz: Yes, the first telepone line was built from out
west
north’ of Bluegrass and way down to New Salem, 1In

wlppeim., The farmers got together—-—they always had to help them-

éus band
selves——and certain ones, my was one of 'em, he was @ yotns
fellow andwatatt meorried then,

ammmeee~ He went around with a paper and they got signers.

They had to have so many so that they could handle it, <ree—dcaoiie
w
And at first we hadﬁl;]jmes to New Salem, line
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number‘one and line number two. I think we were on line number
two. And there were same-..probably-ségézy.peOple...I'm not
certain about the number., And later on they had from egéiéy to
~n;zg£y people, Farms, you know., And they had four or five lines,

a limit, &werty on a line. And we got along.

Larry: That's a lot of people to have en a phone line.

Mrs. Conitz: Now they have telephone lines out there. They
Verg well o m’as..nu, .

have four people on a line, they don't get along., There

trouble. Too much phoning. And even two. So a lot of them are
on a line by themselves,
Larry: Would people have group conversations on the telephone

then?

4

C laughs)
Mrs. Conitz: Oh, yes,vthat could be done because when you'd hear

the long ring for central, everybody would listen because "Now,
what's going on?" Maybe they wanted a doctor or something,

yvou know. gig% were kind of nosey. But you could hear every
ring. Every ring. It all came out to your house.

Larry: But the central was in New Salem.

Mrs., Conitz: Our Bluegrass telephone company had to pay for

use of the central.

up.to New Salema. There wasn't. a.phene

sl to New Salem and Glen Ullin.and

Mrs, Conitz: Vi ¥ we wanted to talk to Glen Ullin, we could

go through New Salem and they'd hook us up there, Be long
distance., But the service wasn't too good. Now over at
they haed a
Youngtown, girl w® to take care of the switchboard therege
’/FBP the few lines that they had. I don't know how many it was.

Three, four or five. It all came in there., And then if you
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wanted to phone to New Salem then she'd hook you up to New

Salem or to any other line.

Larry: But you got a phone then in

Mrs. Conitz: Yes, Youngtown was a little bit earlier I

think .
Larry: 8o a telephone has been a pretty old addition.

Mrs, Conitz: Yes., It was a long time back. My dad, from the

83 |91
time they came in e&ghtgiﬁh?ee g until Seen—iourie

didn't have any.

= they

Larry: What were the roads like out in that area? Trails, kind
of?

Mrs, Conitz: Trails. There weren't any roads, there were trails,

We could start from our place and the road went right straight

north and soutll, And then we hit New Salem. And that's the

way it was all over., And then other roads would come in. As

New Salem )

you got closer to bass—ewmss, there was moretraffic. But up

until we started getting cars out there, vegsmsesse it was just

country roads. That's why those old Fords were good because

they had a high center. You wouldn't get hung up. .
workt

Larry: Do you remember what period they really started wuﬁﬁéggon

roads {ae=rr

e 30'3‘
Mrs. Conitz: I suppose it was #m—slegy maybe in the &hiwrbies,

During those dry hard years there’the WPA came in and they did
more working on the roads because those townships,ﬂgg;;:ﬂﬂﬁa?-
seemed to have too much money. They were very tight. Well,
they didn't need such good roads. But once there were a few
cars around, then they needed culverts and things like that.
And the WPA, now when was that? In the théggggs. They had to
work off their poll tax. They could work it off or pay it. 1

think it was a dollar. So in the summertime, or in the spring,
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when they were through with their work, they'd have an overseer
in each part of the township and then the people would take
their horses and their slip scraper and go and work at the
roads. They'd pay their poll tax that way and earn a little
money on the side. Take their lunch. And generally they'd take
two horses and then if they used a big scraper, those real big
ones, they'd have two teams on there then and maybe two farmers

would go together, you know, and one wouldn't have to furnish

all the horses. Buwt o Hou d:d,-’o-u g0t €xtra pPey -
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Could you
get books from the school to bring home for familes to read or
did they get a weekly paper?

Mrs, Conitz: We didn't have books at school, When I started to

school I don't thinkthereﬁﬁ‘?a.dozen readable books in there,
Nothing for yg to read. It would be Hkiiemgs maybe some adver-
tisements, pamphlets, you know, but as for reading otherwise, my
folks were a little better than most places I think., I can
remember my dad ordering the Chicago Fxaminer, -bhdbl-db.iies, a
paper, and there was a kid's portion there. And I was big enough

to read. I was about seven or eight.

Lapers, And my dad Mthe German paper.
sb—-pabtished®—

Mner—Gorttar——Seens-to-me-there was-someGerman-paper-that - wWas-—
b M T
G R A Bl Qe

U N W=y Tt
Pl BBy

Larry: Where did this Chicago Examiner.,..was that a monthly or

a weeklyan.;,

Mrs. Conitz: A weekly, I think
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We'd get it whenever my dad would happen to go to town. We

. . '9061 or '04.
got our mail from New Salem all those years until about Remes

~teer-TIgitor—rirey We'd get our mail from Bluegrass because

the mail was brought out from New Salem to Bluegrass Post Office,

&horse, And it would be closer.

That was only about two and a half miles and then one day he
came home and he said, "Now I've got a box over at...post office
box number seven and then we '&i our mail from there. But
otherwise we had to wait until he'd go to town. In the winter-
time he'd maybe go once in two weeks, When we needed something
out there. Or take in a load of grain or something like that.
Larry: Did you have butter and eggs when you were growing up

to barter or swap? Bring into the grocery store...

Mrs, Conitz: Yes. My mother didn't sell @& butter too much.

'Cause we didn't have too many cows in those days before we had

a separator., Three or four cows. She never milked. And she'd
take the milk down into the basement smbe=blre—eeddsw and skim
off the cream and buttery #ew—sees And then we had just abut
what we needed for our own use during those times. And the eggs
was that way too. They may have taken some into town, but not
too much. But after we started getting our mail esee at Bluegrass,
then I remember taking eggs over to Bluegrass and they had that
creamery there, They called it a creamery, but they took milk

at first. But we didn't take much milk over there. Netrmichns
Then we switched to separators and we took cream. And, yes, we'd
take our can of cream, send the kids over with a can of cream

and get the groceries.

Larry: Would the cream that{;=a got at the Bluegrass Creamery,
ewkd-iglaet be made into butter and then hauled to New Salem and

sent out on the railroad.?
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Mrs., Conitz: Yes. They had a regular buttermaker out there

and he stayed there and lived there. He made the butter and

my husband's father had that store and F=wers=irzrrdy—foTTHE,
they had the contractg to take the butter to town. Then they'd
bring out their supplies, their groceries, ypevu-iegmm @& there
were other people that lmuled butter, I suppose, but the Conitz®$%
did it because it worked in with their store, And they'd load

up that butter and laul it in and ship it out.

]la:E;;' So '1‘hay "_VM"W«J"F FaNRE il e ¥ MO | -C RPN e o e
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Mrs., Conitz: No it was each person for himself. You see, Grand-

and
we had the store.- would get

pa Conitz

paid for taking the butter in, but we farmers didn't have any-
thing to do with that. No, we delivered cream over to the
creamerxfutwg'd get our cream check right away. And then we'd
take that cream check and we'd go over to the store and buy our
groceries or whatever else we needed., We could get everything
there. That was everyone for himself,

Larry: Did your family do their banking and things like that
zarry

] Py PN 4 <l 3 3
wrere—yot—eoutdirti—do--sonebhing-beeause~Bluegrass didnlihave

e facilities, that would be done in New Salem,

Mrs. Conitz: Yes,

LarryY What kind of lighting did you use before you got the
32
tedrba-tuwo volt or the standby plant?

Mrs., Conitz: Kerosene. Yes we used kerosene lamps and then we

LS gttt S0 ® got an Alladin lamp., That's much

LA

better, ¥ That's quite a lamp. But at home wy-fedlss I gasoline

Makes white light. @ men came through and he was pedd!

4.‘7
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lampsg ,kﬁd that type of lighting system. They had a gasoline
tank. We had a tank standing in our pantry. It was, oh I
think it held about three gallons probably, of gasoline, And
there was a wire, hollow wire that went up along the ceiling
there and it came out in the kitchen and the living room and

in the dining room. We just had those three lamps. B&drtt-yor—

SYET. SEE. Sl e e Bidslrer P

Mrs, Conitz: The wire came out of the ceiling here and then

the lamp was on that. And it was a mantle lamp. And to light
those things you had to heat them first. And then there was a
swab, we called it a swab, it was a wide sheet thing, and it
had asbestos wrapped around on those two places. )Wé dipped that
in denatured alcohol and 1lit it and held it under that lamp
until it got hot and then turﬂsén the gasoline., And it made

a nice light. Oh, we were happy about that because we could
see the corners after dark, you know. Otherwise, we had a lamp
in the middle of the table or a lamp hanging from the ceiling.
It just wasn't too good a light, but then we got along. But
the trouble with those mantle lamps was we had to cover the
mantle with something., My dad took a screen and put a thing
over it like that because of flies and bugs. Then later on we
had the portable gasoline lamps.

Larry: With the mantles.

Mrs., Conitz: Yes, two mantles and we'd carry them around a

little bit better.
Larry: Now the kind that pew—lemd—wirere=yew had the mantles

hanging from this tube from the ceiling, if the pressure went
down then you'd have to go to this gas tank and pump up the

pressure.,
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Mrs, Conitz: Yeah. There was a guage on there. It did the

Jjob there for quite a few years. There were some farmers out
. "

there that had F-thiwi-they—ealie sedum lights. Anyway,

theysesthis stuff that they'd get, it was big chunks, kind of,
and they'd put it in a tank and water would drip on it., And
that would form a gas and they had that piped up and would come
out too. It was the same system that they used on those old
Ford cars. Carbide is what I mean.

Larry: Those were kind of dangerous, though, weren't they?

Mrs. Conitz: I think they were. They'd forget‘about this

water, If it happened to drip, you know, and téa? didn't know
it, it would explode. Yes, they were. All these gasoline lamps,
we were always very careful, We respected those gasoline lamps.,
My mother got an iron one time from a peddlar and, that's one
thing a man came throughand sold us, and it was gasoline. 1

remember, I think she used it once and she never used it again.

LYo L et -ore—of T EE S Was~ Kk Ing o grared

s It LI T IR Y| .
il Loowy OISR EIRE LT .

Mrs, Conitz: Yeah, those flames would come up and around, you

know.
Larry: But usually she would use flat irons, the kind you could
heat on the stove?

Mrs, Conitz: We always used a flat iron. We would iron on

baking days--bake bread and the irons would get hot and we'd
keep alternating, 80 the nicest thing I ever had was when I
could use an electric iron., That was the best thing.

Larry: Now with these old flat irons you would have to iron a

cloth on top of what you were actually ironing, right?

Mes. Coniteze.  Sometdmes..df FOU- AR 5O DO LR OFE

Lesererr—=Jr-yonr-wontdntt-geta-rust-sReap O r- Gilllee o
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Mrs. Conitz: Well, those irons were nice and clean. They

were rubbed on something so that they were perfectly clean.

¢
But you had to be an expert to not have # too hot, wpeo—kmew, and
' (law hs)

how long to leave it in one place. you had to touch it,

Larry: 5 id you ever use a curling iron? -Sane-
¥
Swblalbedoneoatd-rert-orn - a-stovres

Mrs. Conitz: We heated 'em up on top of lamps, you know,

haag ovey the lamp aad they'd
The handle was flexible and they'd¥turn the lamp down a little

bit but they'd get Jjust boiling hot. And my mother used it 2
swos8 when she was younger, but she had one. I can remember

: : the chimneq :
trying to use it once and I knocked my chdsm oTf or something
and that was the last time I used it. But our teachers once in
awhile, they would use those things.
Larry: Did they board at your place?
Mrs, Conitz: Yeah, There is a teacher that stayed at our house

in némégﬁgiiamﬂamband I still correspond with her., She lives

in Yuma, Arizona,now; A very old lady.

—Tégggxz What was the gocial life like @8 around Bluegrass when
you were a little girl or from what your father told you before
you were born?

Mrs. Conitz: Well, they did more socializinget @iz, than they

do now. Now. they go to the movies or something like that, but

in those days&«re'd get together at the neighbors, Werd always
visit back and forth. And we had very nice times, you know.
Families were closer together all the way around., Lots of
interesting evenings that way. We'd play cards, go on a sled,
strawmthe bottom and lots of blankets. And I remember those
things...l liked it. I'd wto go through it again. I wish that
g:k kids nowadays could have something like that. I don't know

whether they'd enjoy it or not, but it was fun then.

Larry: And when the parents went’the whole family went.
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Mrs, Conitz: Yes, we all went.

Larry: No babysitters.

Mrs, Conitz: No, no babysitters. If a babysitter was needed

my mother wouldn't go., But it was very, very seldom that we
didn't all go. It was just after we were all grown up or in
the teens or something like that, once in awhile my dad would
take us where we wanted to go. Because there were smaller chil-
dren in my family. My brother was feér%een years younger than
I. He was a baby when I was pretty well grown up.

Larry: Would most of the social activities in the wintertime
then be just visiting the neighbors and playing cards?

MI‘S. COl'litZ: .Yes. W{‘ Vm:rlr = 7qwrn, ynir’r h‘hc]r\ﬂné«’o

p@eﬂ&,*l;ad a couple of ministers tha&a’were acquainted
with that lived up northwest, you know, and they would stop in

there and then all the neighbors would come and then they'd

have services., We had our services at the schoolhouse. There

was a baby that was supposed to be baptised, well the minister

came through and baptised the baby. Things like that. .

Larry: The box socials and basket socials, those were predominantly
school fundraisers.

Mrs, Conitz: Yes. Oh, yes, we had them all...I think every

year we'd have a basket social, Generally in the fallg after
school had starte@")&ﬁ.probably have a little program. If

it wasn't the kids then it would be the grownups would have to
put in their two cents worth--sing some songs or recitations or
something like that. They went for that. My husband told about
how they had a literary society over in their school. So the
young people got together there. Tried to learn a little bit

that way, I guess YOu'd Saye

Larry: A basket social or a box soclal at the school would

not be a monthly thing...
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Mrs. Conitz - No, once a year.

Would there be
Larry: Naggle o Christmas program then too.

Mrs. Conitz: Yeah, but we generally had, almost always had a

school program at Christmas. And in the spring we might have

a program for the last day and then a picnic to go with it, oums
Something like that. Unless we had the picnic in somebody's
grove and then we wouldn't have the program. It just depended
on the teacher. Those basket socials were fune ( chueklies)

Would the money from a basket social

Larry:

or a box social at the school go for textbooks?es—shings.lilke

St

Mrs. Conitz: Not for textbooks, but for whatever supplies they

needed¢.,862ause the school didn't furnish anything. We

Iy
bought our own pencils and tablets. = our books—~everybody
would bring the book that he had at home, a reader, you know,

I've got some old books here., Here's one of 'em. Ané—when fe

When he finished that, then he'd read the next grade. The

books were so difficult, that it would take a whole year for

a kid to get through a book. Sometimes if there were more than
two children in a grade, they'd each have a different book, a

lot of times. But that didn't make any difference, the teacher
would help you, A lot of times, we'd get more help that way. there
Was mere rwdividual help thew,

Larry: Did you use flash cards then to teach reading?

Mrs, Conitz: No, they didn't. DNot when I was going to school.

I started on what they called a chart. Then I got into the
-
first reader., But when I was teaching thenfhey had those flash
anrd thigs like tha't .

cardsv Qulte a bit of time was spent on teaching our children

to write a nice hand I know that those older peopleg to this day

they can write a better hand than these young people. We had

our penmanship every Friday afternoon. For a half an hour or soO.
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Well, with that basket social money, they'd buy what they
needed around in the school.

Larry: Did you have to take exams when you were a student or
give them later when you were a teacher to establish graduation
from the eighth grade or passage from one grade to another?

Mrs, Conitz: Yes, the teachers would do that on their own,

At the end the superintendent would come out and visite...

the county superintendent. And the eighth grade was sent out
from the county. The seventh and eighth grade. They would
take agriculture.... (thacdible)

Larry: What were the responsibilities of a rural schoolteacher
Larry I

back in the &4
ey Or in the early ad » when you were in school?
They were the janitor and the school nurse and everything, T
suppose.

Mrs, Conitz: Yeah., It said right in the contract the teacher

was to do all janitor work. They didn't need to be told because
shewlenew they had to do it. They had to keep the fires, clean
out the ashes, and if they were good conscientous people they
took care of the schoolhouse,

Larry: Do you remember as a student or later as a teacher, any
discipline problems, or were the kids pretty straightened around

by the parents before they got to school?

Mrs. Conitz: Fthink-they-mwere, I think they were., We didn't

have any discipline problems, Oh, I remember one big boy kind

of got out of line one day and I went down there and I cuffed him

on the ears and he was so surprised he never did anything wrong

Claughs . ) |
again. And we didn't have any trouble, not in my school., The
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schools that I taught. I taught in four different districts,
four different schools.

Larry: Do you think weewthat the parents were more apt to

% A +haxr had o n'ln-ngA -{-ka:h- sias. o Addandnldina nrahlom.  dlhesmmn,
™ 3 % ks Y4 P v °

wewdel Dack the teacher @ rather than backing the child up
against the teacher.

Mrs., Conitz: They were scared to go home if they didn't behave

in school, My dad said, "If you get a lickin' at school you're
sure ing to get one at home.," Well, we never got a lickin’'.
But we didn't have trouble. Not in our school. If they had

had a discipline problem, I don't know what they would have
done. With all grades and a big school,

Larry: How were the lessons handled mu_adﬁzé you were in school
yourself? Or how did you handle them later? Would the third
grade be brought to the front of the room and did you have a
table there?

Mrs., Conitz: A recitation seat. Yeah., We had a long bench

and they'd line up on that. Sit on that. And then they'd
wi€dey .

recite théir lessons, It was a little ;hiber on this end and

they wouldn't bother the other... 'Course then later on we got

the single seats. Then the teachers would walk up and down

the line., T know I did. TI'd walk up and down the line and
}hdpfﬁw with

watch them as they did their work, you know. eir arithmetic

and things like that.,

Larry: Would the kids that were swwsmsmm: the fifth or sixth

grade disrupt the fourth graders when they were up ab=—blresdsead.

at the recitation...

Mrs, Conitz: There wasn't too much of that, no, that I know of.

1'!47 weuld la;'lcn,
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Larry: Beb—bi.you.uwere.in-the-fiftlr-prade-and-bire - Ffourth -
Erade-wac-going throvgh-thoir TECTESTION Perive-ami-suppooe-—
FovewoReEhe-tegeirer, Jf one of the kids in the fifth grade

knew the answer to a question that you were asking the fourth
graders, he couldn't sit in back and raise his hand?
Mrs., Conitz: No, no. They might laugh at the kids for not

. at recess e, .
knowing the answer, on the side wewmlssewgybut the place up in

front where they recited, that was for their class,

|15
Larry: Would there be a #4feeenm minute recess then I suppose

aboutee.
. le.3e ¢-30
Mrs, Conitz: At 3 and at swemidedrsw» in the afternoon.

Larry: And then an hour from bw%ZQG until 4&é.

Mrs, Conitz: Yeah. And then in the wintertime when the days

were short, like in November and December, towards the end of
the term, when we had probably only a half hour. So we could

- 30.
let school out at%h#gajéhénﬁy.

Larry: Do you remember any particularly bad winters when school
would be called off for a couple weeks at a time?

Mrs. Conitz: Feedp=seam, Fhat's why we didn't have school in

the winter,;,éézause it was cold and stomy and everything.

But once in awhile we would get caught in the fall or there'd

be a blizzarde-wes=-dneuge in December or even in March. And

then well, we always had ordergnot to let anyone go home until
the parents would come., And the parents were always there to
get their childrem"/if the weather looked bad. That was a rule.
Never let the children go home. Because that did happen, you
know, where the children were lost on the way home, frozen to
death.

Larry: Let me skip aheadée-:whe to the Depression. Nowsmisew..
’bu were living in Bluegrass and your husband was a mail carrier

: ‘306 .
then yet in the thixiies, right?

Tl e
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Mrs. Conitz: Up to fﬂrﬂywé%m&h-

Larry: Were times pretty hard around here for farmers in the

Depression?

Mrs., Conitz: It was. It was dry. They didn't have crops.

And I saw at one time where they had to sell their cattle,

The government
Iy = bought them real cheap./\Yés, there was hard times,

[mhez were glad to _get what they did, ! They were very close.

They had to run things just real close, One family had come
out from Minnesota and settled on one of the farms out there,
And they didn't know how to take care of things here in a storm.
Sl 1 remember this man coming to Bluegrass and he didn't
even have overshoes., He had his feet wrapped in a gunnysack.

ut then that was an extreme case.

vy}

Larry: Was there a lot of dust storms? Can you remember the

dust?
' 3.'3 .
Mrs, Conitz: Yes. We had some dust storms during the &errtIBE?
t30's
They call 'em the dirty ekdsbies and they were dirty. Yes. And
just like 0

you could see those fields, «e2 spirale, you know, the dust
going up. And there were several fields close to Bluegrass that
did that. J4 was....Cinaudibie)

Larry: Were there grasshopper years too?

Mrs., Conitz: Yes, we had grasshoppers a couple years. In

‘3l
Phdsebammadx wWwas it was dry and there were lots of grasshoppers.

And then the farmers tried to poison those grasshoppers with
arsenic and whatever it was, bran or something that they had
mixed. They'd go to town and get it and spray it out in the
fields early in the morning. We did too, But I don't know
whether it killed any grasshoppers or not. Maybe it did. T just
don't know,

Larry: Do you remember people as being very demoralized or

Iaalsf

discouraged during the &hiwmbiesy d

i doa-k:
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Mrs. Conitz: Yes, I think they were. There were a lot of them

that gave up. They had these barnyard sales, you know, and
everything was sold, even the flyswatter., I remember being at
one of those sales. And then those people went back to Minne-
sota where they came from. They had moved in there later. Yes.
It was really kind of discouraging, especially when the banks
closed. I remember my dad hwm...well, we had quite a few cream
checks saved up and Jjust didn't need the money and didn't spend
it then so one day he was going to go to town. I was married
already then. That was in the th;;;EZE. And he said, I happened
to be over= there and he said, "I think I*11 just take these
checks and put 'em in the bank." And, you know, next day the

bank closed. And it wasn't such a big amount of money, probably

i+ dolhrs or something like that, a bunch of
cream checks and maybe something like that. And then the bank
closed., Then they couldn't get the money out of the bank and

we couldn't get any money out of the bank and we didn't have any

at home, It was really bad. I've kind of forgotten those things, F

don't like to remember that.
Larry: Maybe the human memory is a good thing.

Mrs, Conitz: It's a good thing to be able to forget.

Larry: We're getting down to the end of this tape. Fhexels

o

. o 2 " PN ) Ao e
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‘Do you remember people as being more helpful and neighborly and

generous with their time and with their encouragement in the
20th

early days of the swentdedh century?

Mrs, Conitz: Yes, I think they did, because I know that my dad

was always going to help a neighbor--dig a well Or «..
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